

# **TECHNOLOGY AREA**

# "Enzo Ferrari" Engineering Department

Call for applications for the Master's Degree programme with open access in

# SUSTAINABLE INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING

(class LM-33)

Modena campus (Carpi University Technology Hub)

#### Academic Year 2026-2027

for non-EU candidates, residing abroad, applying for a visa

The programme is taught entirely in English

**Summary of Deadlines** 

Online application for the assessment of adequate personal initial preparation	By 31 March 2026
Transfers and changes of programme	By 22 December 2026
Enrolment	From 8July 2026 to 22 December 2026

# **Table of contents**

1.	Introduction	3
2.	Qualifications and knowledge required	3
3.	Assessment of academic background	3
4.	How to submit the online assessment application	4
5.	How to modify or reopen the online assessment application	5
6.	Outcome of the assessment	5
7.	Enrolment procedure (degree programme)	6
Р	re-enrolment on Universitaly for the purpose of issuing a study visa	6
Е	nrolment	7
8.	Payment methods	7
9.	International student services	3
10.	Costs and benefits	3
11.	Procedure Manager	ć
12.	Offices and reference links	ć

IMPORTANT: Any amendment to the deadlines or procedures concerning this Call for applications will be published exclusively on the webpage <a href="https://www.unimore.it/it/ateneo/bandi/call-applications-and-results-international-masters-degree-programme-sustainable-0">https://www.unimore.it/it/ateneo/bandi/call-applications-and-results-international-masters-degree-programme-sustainable-0</a>

No personal communication will be provided

# 1. Introduction

This call is addressed to non-EU candidates, residing abroad, applying for a visa at Italian Diplomatic-Consular Representations, who hold a foreign qualification.

For admission to the Master's Degree in Sustainable Industrial Engineering (class LM-33), all candidates must submit an online assessment application and undergo the assessment of personal preparation by **31 March 2026**, according to the procedures indicated in this call.

Enrolment must be completed without fail by 22 December 2026.

Italian candidates, EU candidates (wherever resident), and foreigners legally residing in Italy, holding a suitable qualification, must follow the procedure indicated in the specific call reserved for them to be admitted to the Master's Degree in Sustainable Industrial Engineering (class LM-33), which will be published tentatively by **March 2026** on the website: Calls | Università degli Studi di Modena e Reggio Emilia.

### 2. Qualifications and knowledge required

The academic career will be evaluated by a dedicated Commission that will verify knowledge of basic subjects (Mathematics, Physics, etc.) typical of Engineering and those specific to Industrial and Mechanical Engineering. This knowledge will be verified through the evaluation of the university career; an interview may also be necessary.

Based on the specific procedures provided for by the Teaching Regulations of the Master's Degree Course in Sustainable Industrial Engineering, if the course of study is not fully consistent with the requirements, the Commission will evaluate the need to supplement the curriculum with an additional path at the student's expense, to be successfully completed by **30 April 2026**.

As specified in the following paragraph, the qualification obtained abroad must have a grade equal to or higher than **3/4** (three quarters) of the maximum score provided by the university system of origin.

If the CGPA is not provided, the weighted average of the grades will be used.

# 3. Assessment of academic background

The assessment of personal initial preparation will be carried out by a specific Commission and knowledge will be considered satisfied if the candidate is in possession of:

- 1. An academic qualification "Bachelor level" considered suitable, obtained abroad by **31 March 2026**, and if the student's career satisfies at least one of the following conditions:
  - a. Qualification obtained with a grade higher than **3/4** (three quarters) of the maximum expected;
  - b. Average of exam grades higher than **3/4 (three quarters)** of the maximum expected (if the qualification has not yet been obtained at the time of assessment);
  - c. Qualification with a grade equivalent to **C** or higher on the ECTS scale;

- d. Qualification with a grade equivalent to a Grade Point Average equal to **3/4** (three quarters) or higher.
- 2. B2 level language certification from the Common European Framework of Reference or, alternatively, a declaration issued by the home University confirming that the candidate has reached this level of competence. The following are accepted:
  - a. International certificates recognised by UNIMORE, present in the list at the link Centro Linquistico di Ateneo;
  - b. University English exams with content equivalent to B2, documented by a declaration from the university of origin;
  - c. Achievement of a "Bachelor degree" in English;
  - d. Origin from English-speaking countries (foreign or Italian citizens who, by family derivation or linguistic background, have the ability to express themselves naturally in the language of origin, are to be considered native speakers).

For candidates who do not have adequate documentation to certify their level of knowledge at the time of application, the Language Centre of the University of Modena and Reggio Emilia offers the possibility of taking a remote B2 level test. Registration for the English test is subject to the submission of the application for the degree course. All information relating to the test is published at: Centro Linguistico di Ateneo.

# 4. How to submit the online assessment application

To submit an assessment application, candidates must:

- From the website <u>Homepage area pubblica</u>, <u>Università di UNIMORE</u>, proceed to "Registration" to obtain access credentials (username and password). Please indicate the e-mail address correctly.
- After logging in, select Student Area (from the Menu tab) and then "Evaluations and tests".
  At the address <a href="https://www.unimore.it/sites/default/files/2023-11/Guida%20alla%20immatricolazione%20online.pdf">https://www.unimore.it/sites/default/files/2023-11/Guida%20alla%20immatricolazione%20online.pdf</a>, you can download the guide "Online evaluation procedure for admission to Master's Degree Programmes".
- 3. After choosing the Sustainable Industrial Engineering (class LM-33) competition, answer affirmatively to the question "Are you an International student with a foreign degree, residing abroad, applying for a visa through the Italian Embassy/Consulate?" and proceed to completion by attaching the following documentation:
  - a. Certification of the qualification obtained and the degree grade. If the qualification has not yet been obtained, declare the presumed date of achievement;
  - b. List of exams passed (in Italian or English) indicating the date, grade, and duration of the course;
  - c. List of any exams still to be taken;
  - d. Certification of the maximum degree score assigned by the foreign University;
  - e. Detailed exam programmes (in Italian or English);
  - f. B2 level language certificate (Common European Framework of Reference);
  - g. Other skills useful for assessment (e.g. computer skills, language skills, work experience, etc.).

**IMPORTANT:** the application is correctly submitted only when the candidate has saved the data and confirmed the application by selecting the field "explicit confirmation of validity of the application".

In order for the application to be considered, candidates must pay a **contribution fee of € 20.00** (non-refundable) by 31 March 2026.

Payment must be made through the PagoPA circuit, accessible from the "Fees" section of your personal page on Esse3. Please note that commission amounts may vary depending on the chosen Payment Service Provider (PSP). As indicated in the information on the website: <a href="Paying university tuition fees">Paying university tuition fees</a> | Università degli Studi di Modena e Reggio Emilia, the payment procedure consists of logging in to <a href="Homepage area pubblica, Università di UNIMORE">Homepage area pubblica, Università di UNIMORE</a>, going to the "Fees" item to view the amounts due and accessing the pago PA circuit.

The payment of the required amounts must be made only through the PagoPA circuit which allows online payment by choosing your Payment Service Provider - PSP. As confirmation of payment, an email will be sent to the personal mailbox entered during registration, or to the University one if already activated. From your personal Esse3 page, under the "Fees" item, it will be possible to print the payment receipt. Please note that the amounts of the commissions due may vary depending on the chosen PSP.

#### Pay attention to deadlines

**IMPORTANT**: for the University, the PAYMENT date shown on the electronic payment receipt (RT) is authentic. Regardless of the justifying reasons, payments whose date on the payment receipt (RT) is later than 31/03/2026 will not be considered valid for the purposes of evaluating the admission application.

**ATTENTION**: According to the indications of "AgID" Digital Italy Agency, the payment operation could be carried out by the "PSP" Payment Service Provider on the day following the request made by the payer, thus precluding the evaluation of the application.

### 5. How to modify or reopen the online assessment application

Should it be necessary to reopen the application to correct data or to add new documentation, send (in any case by the deadline of **30 April 2026**) an e-mail to the Student Secretariat at the address: <a href="mailto:segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it">segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it</a>.

#### 6. Outcome of the assessment

The examining Commission of the Master's Degree Course in Sustainable Industrial Engineering (class LM-33) of the "Enzo Ferrari" Department of Engineering evaluates the qualifications and documentation attached to the application. The result of the assessment will be made known to students by communication published at <a href="https://siaweb.unimore.it/public/valutazionilm/EsitiE.aspx?aaid=2026&testid=4&en=1">https://siaweb.unimore.it/public/valutazionilm/EsitiE.aspx?aaid=2026&testid=4&en=1</a>, by accessing with the credentials issued at the time of registration on the ESSE3 portal, and via e-mail to the address indicated during registration. On the indicated page, one of the following outcomes may appear:

1. **ELIGIBLE:** the initial preparation is considered adequate, and the curricular requirements are satisfied. If the qualification has already been obtained, the candidate can proceed with enrolment following the instructions below.

- 2. **DEBTS IDENTIFIED**: the Commission will indicate any deficiencies (educational debts) and the methods for their recovery. The educational debt must be filled before enrolment and in any case by 31 JULY 2026 to guarantee enrolment by 22 DECEMBER 2026.
- 3. **NOT ELIGIBLE**: the Commission will indicate the reasons why it did not consider the initial preparation adequate or the failure to satisfy the curricular requirements. In this case, enrolment is not permitted.
- 4. INCOMPLETE APPLICATION: if mandatory documentation is missing, the application will be automatically reopened from the following day with the status "Non-definitive application". It will be the candidate's responsibility to attach the missing documents and close the application again for a new evaluation. The following statuses may also be displayed:
- 5. **NON-DEFINITIVE APPLICATION**: the candidate has not explicitly confirmed the application by clicking on the appropriate field; therefore, it cannot be evaluated.
- 6. **TO BE EVALUATED:** the application has been submitted correctly, but the commission has not yet proceeded with the evaluation.

The examining commission can be contacted at: info.sie@unimore.it.

# 7. Enrolment procedure (degree programme)

Foreign citizens residing abroad and applying for a visa must follow the provisions and deadlines relating to **A.Y. 2026-2027** indicated in the circular of the Ministry of University and Research on the link universitaly.it/studenti-stranieri.

They are also required to comply with the reserved quota approved by the University.

For A.Y. 2026/2027, this quota is 40 places reserved for non-EU citizens applying for a visa.

### Pre-enrolment on Universitaly for the purpose of issuing a study visa

Candidates must pre-enrol on the UNIVERSITALY website (https://www.universitaly.it) in order to obtain a study visa. The application is transmitted to UNIMORE which, after validation, will communicate any admission to the Consular Authority. Candidates must attach to Universitaly:

- 1. Passport
- 2. Passport photo.

Those in possession of it can attach further documentation regarding:

- 3. Original qualification with relative translation;
- 4. Declaration of value issued by the Embassy/Consulate or, alternatively, the comparability certificate issued by the CIMEA centre (<u>CIMEA Academic Equivalence Mobility Information Center</u>);
- 5. List of exams taken in Italian or English
- 6. Any language certifications (example, English B2 level). It is suggested to promptly contact the diplomatic-consular representations to ascertain the requirements necessary for the issuance of the visa.

### **Enrolment**

Candidates who are "eligible" can enrol in the Master's Degree in Sustainable Industrial Engineering (Class LM-33) if they:

- 1. have submitted an application on Universitaly and
- 2. have obtained an entry visa to Italy "for study" in good time.

Enrolment takes place from 8 July 2026 to 22 December 2026.

The office responsible for enrolment is the Student Secretariat of the "Enzo Ferrari" Department of Engineering located in Via P. Vivarelli, 10 - 41125 Modena (Italy) - email: <a href="mailto:segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it">segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it</a>.

Opening hours can be consulted at the link <u>Registrar and student offices | Università degli Studi di Modena e Reggio Emilia</u>

For enrolment, the following documentation is required to be sent in advance via email to the address <a href="mailto:segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it">segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it</a> to the Student Secretariat:

- Degree diploma, Bachelor Level, translated and legalised by the Italian Embassy/Consulate, declaration of value of the degree diploma, issued by the Italian Embassy/Consulate or alternatively declaration from ENIC-NARIC centres. For more information, consult the website <u>Statements of Comparability and Verification - CIMEA</u>
- 2. Degree certificate with exams in Italian or English, issued by the University where the degree was obtained;
- 3. copy of the residence permit or, alternatively, copy of the receipt, issued by the post office, certifying the filing of the request for a permit;
- 4. valid identity document;
- 5. passport photo;
- 6. Study visa;

Any language certifications issued in English.

The Student Secretariat, having verified the correctness and completeness of the documentation exhibited by the student, provides for making available in the personal page in Esse3, under the item "Fees", the contribution bulletins provided for the academic year 2026-2027 and making the enrolment definitive after payment of the 1st instalment. Payment methods are indicated on the website <a href="https://www.unimore.it/en/PagoPA">https://www.unimore.it/en/PagoPA</a>

#### **IMPORTANT**

Please note that the payment date indicated on the ELECTRONIC PAYMENT RECEIPT applies.

Regardless of the justifications provided, payments reporting a date later than 22 December 2026 on the receipt will not be deemed valid for enrolment purposes.

PLEASE NOTE According to AgID (Agency for Digital Italy), the payment may be made by the payment service provider on the day following the payer's request. This would preclude the enrolment.

#### 8. Payment methods

As indicated in the information on the website <a href="https://www.unimore.it/en/PagoPA">https://www.unimore.it/en/PagoPA</a>, from <a href="https://www.unimore.it/en/PagoPA">Homepage area</a> <a href="pubblica">pubblica</a>, Università di UNIMORE, once logged in, go to the Fees item to view the amounts due and access the pago PA circuit.

The payment of the required amounts must be made only through the PagoPA circuit which allows:

1. to pay online (choosing your own Payment Service Provider - PSP). As confirmation of payment, an email will be sent to the personal mailbox entered during registration, or to the University one if already activated. From your personal Esse3 page, under the "Fees" item,

it will be possible to print the payment receipt or alternatively

2. to print the payment notice to make the payment at Banks, ATM counters, SISAL, Lottomatica and ITB points of sale, which perform the PSP service for the Pago PA circuit, which will issue a receipt of the request made. Please note that the amounts of the commissions due may vary depending on the chosen PSP.

#### 9. International student services

Non-EU students participating in this call can contact the UNIMORE International Welcome Desk for support in handling administrative procedures such as:

- 1. information on any quarantine
- 2. residence permit request
- 3. tax code (codice fiscale) request
- 4. opening a bank account
- 5. health insurance
- 6. transport concessions
- 7. access to the accommodation search and housing consultancy service
- 8. accommodation certificate for the diplomatic representation

All students are invited to register on the platform <u>ISU Services</u> to book the provision of services. The office receives:

- 1. in Modena in Via S. Geminiano, 3. Receives on Monday, Wednesday and Friday continuous hours 9:30 15:00
- 2. in Reggio Emilia in Via Allegri, 15 at the Student Services Management, on Wednesday on a bi-weekly basis and as needed based on specific requirements.

E-mail: internationalwelcomedesk@unimore.it Telephone: 059 2058171

#### 10. Costs and benefits

A student with non-EU citizenship, whose family unit has income/assets exclusively abroad, will be able to benefit from a facilitated fixed contribution system (FLAT TAX EXTRA UE) based on an economic condition calculated by the University, according to the income defined having regard to the GDP (gross domestic product) PPP (at purchasing power parity) determined based on each individual country of origin, and updated annually with World Bank data.

The university will organise dedicated information meetings on this topic for all students who have submitted their application on the Universitaly platform, the calendar of which will be published at the link <u>UNIMORE Webinar: discover university benefits!</u> <u>Università degli Studi di Modena e</u> Reggio Emilia.

To request benefits (Exemption from university fees, Scholarship, accommodation in university residences, catering services and other concessions), the international student resident abroad is required to submit the online application by the end of **August 2026**.

The online application is submitted from the website <u>www.er-go.it</u> even before enrolment or before knowing the outcome of the admission application or visa issuance. The Benefits Call, with all the rules that constitute special law, will be published tentatively from early **July 2026**.

Students are invited to pay attention to deadlines. For more information and to check any updates relating to the **academic year 2026-2027**, please consult the website <a href="https://www.unimore.it/ammissione/tasse.html">www.unimore.it/ammissione/tasse.html</a> Failure to submit the online application involves the payment of the total amount of university fees of approximately 2,200.00 euros, divided into 4 instalments. The information reported above is updated to **December 2025** and may be subject to update/modification/integration based on Resolutions of the Academic Bodies adopted following the issuance of this call, but which will be published and made known on the website.

The candidate with a disability who intends to present a document issued by a public authority, in which a disability is certified, must proceed with the sworn translation into Italian of this document and upload it to the portal <a href="Homepage area pubblica">Homepage area pubblica</a>, <a href="Università di UNIMORE">Università di UNIMORE</a> during the ADMISSION APPLICATION submission procedure. The candidate with a disability must also contact the Welcome Service for Students with Disabilities and with SLD of UNIMORE: <a href="https://www.asd.unimore.it/site/home.html">https://www.asd.unimore.it/site/home.html</a>.

The candidate with a disability, who intends to request exemption or reduction from university fees, must submit the application online through the portal <a href="www.er-go.it">www.er-go.it</a>.

### 11. Procedure Manager

Pursuant to Law no. 241/1990, the Person Responsible for this procedure is Dr. Giuseppe Milano, head of the Student Secretariat.

The competent office is the Student Secretariat of the "Enzo Ferrari" Engineering Department, Master's Degree Course in Sustainable Industrial Engineering (class LM-33) tel. 059/2055637; e-mail: <a href="mailto:segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it">segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it</a>.

#### 12. Offices and reference links

For information on the Call for Application (e.g. application for evaluation, re-opening an online application for evaluation, deadlines), please, contact the Registrar's Office of the "E. Ferrari" Engineering Department, Via Campi 213/b 41125 - Modena Phone: +39 059/2055637; email: <a href="mailto:segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it">segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it</a>

Opening hours are available on the website <a href="https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices">https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices</a>

#### For information on how to register:

If you are a non-EU candidate residing abroad and applying for a visa or you have a foreign study qualification, please, contact the Student Secretariat of the "Enzo Ferrari" Engineering Department, Via Campi 213/b 41125 – Modena:

E-mail: segrstud.ingegneria@unimore.it

Tel. 059/2055637

For office hours, refer, please to the following link:

https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices

For information on teaching (e.g. study programme, teachings, class timetables, reference professors) please contact the Teaching Office of the "E. Ferrari" Engineering Department, Via Pietro Vivarelli, 10 – 41125 – Modena www.ingmo.unimore.it . email: didattica.dief@unimore.it

**For IT troubles** with the online application procedure and evaluation procedure or to retrieve the esse3 log on credentials, please, e-mail <a href="webhelp@unimore.it">webhelp@unimore.it</a> . Assistance service is provided with the opening hours: Monday to Thursday from 9:00 to 15:00 and on Friday from 9:00 to 14:00.

For troubles with the online application for benefits, please, call the service CHIAMA di ERGO: Tel. 051.19907580 or Tel. 051.0185268, or log in to the service SCRIVI from your Dossier Utente.

For technical troubles during the filling out the application, please, call: 051.0517140 or 051.0185291.

Website for submitting the application for benefits www.er-go.it

For information about services offered to students with disability or with specific learning disorders, please, refer to the Welcome Office for Disable and Dyslexic Students:

Website: www.asd.unimore.it

Modena Headquarters: strada Vignolese 671/c

Tel. 059 2058311

Reggio Emilia Headquarters: viale Antonio Allegri, 13

Tel. 0522 523506

E-mail: disabilita@unimore.it dsa@unimore.it

For information about the orientation in the Unimore courses, please, refer to the Informastudenti service:

Website: https://poa.unimore.it/informastudenti/

Modena office: Via Università, 4

Tel. 059 2058255

Reggio Emilia office: viale Antonio Allegri, 15

Tel. 0522 523555

E-mail: informastudenti@unimore.it

For office hours, refer, please, to the following link:

https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices

If you are an international applicant, residing abroad, contact, please, the UNIMORE International Welcome Desk to receive support in administrative procedures (for example: request for a residence permit, request for a tax code, opening a current account, health insurance, benefits for transport, access to the accommodation search and housing consultancy service, accommodation certificate for diplomatic representation).

To book the provision of services, it is mandatory to register on the platform <u>www.isu-services.it/it/universities/universita-di-modena</u>.

Modena Headquarters: S. Geminiano Complex, 3.

For office hours, please, refer to:

 $\underline{https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices/international-welcome-desk-modena-office}$ 

Reggio Emilia Headquarters: via Allegri, 15.

For office hours, please, refer to:

https://www.unimore.it/en/services/registrar-and-student-offices/international-welcome-desk-reggio-emilia-office

Phone: 059 2058171

Email: internationalwelcomedesk@unimore.it

The Registrar's Office and Informastudenti will be closed from 10 to 14 August 2026.